Town of South Bristol
6500 West Gannett Hill Road
Naples, NY 14512-9216
585.374.6341

Planning Board Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, November 19, 2025, at 6:30 pm
Meeting in-person or by joining Zoom

https://us02web.zoom.us/i/89061465228?pwd=alxyTSTCidH7rkOWw3sx6cs8sw2eBE. 1
Zoom Meeting ID 890 6146 5228, Passcode 393641

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance

Reading of Vision Statement

As stewards of both the land and the lake, we will preserve and protect our safe, clean, naturally
beautiful, rural, and scenic environment with thoughtfully planned residential, agricultural,
recreational, and commercial development.

Meeting Etiquette

Minutes
Approval of Planning Board meeting minutes for June 18, 2025

Old Business

Public Hearing

Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0007
County Planning Board Referral: Exempt
Owners: Mark Conners
Representative: Kevin Dooley
Property: 6555 Longs Point Drive
Tax Map: 185.17-2-15.000
Zoned: R-3 (Residential 3 Acre)

New Business
Amendment to Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0001 Granted on May 21, 2025
County Planning Board Referral: Exempt
Owners: William P. Vitek & Laurel S. Raines
Representative: Mark Schlegel
Property: 6957 Granger Point Drive
Tax Map: 191.17-1-7.000
Zoned: LR (Lake Residential)



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89061465228?pwd=aIxyTSTCidH7rk9Ww3sx6cs8sw2eBE.1

Special Use Permit & Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0008 (Lot with Two Principal Uses)

County Planning Board Referral: 196.0-2025 Special Use Permits; 196.1-2025 Site Plans
(Class 1)

Owners: Patrick Romero & Kristin Romero

Representative: Patrick & Kristin Romero

Property: 6256 St Rt 64

Tax Map: 184.00-1-43.220

Zoned: C-1 (Light Commercial 1 Acre)

Special Use Permit & Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0009 (Fabrication/Assembly of

Products Use)

County Planning Board Referral: 196.0-2025 Special Use Permits; 196.1-2025 Site Plans
(Class 1)

Owners: Patrick Romero & Kristin Romero

Representative: Patrick & Kristin Romero

Property: 6256 St Rt 64

Tax Map: 184.00-1-43.220

Zoned: C-1 (Light Commercial 1 Acre)

Special Use Permit & Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0010 (Single-Family Dwelling Use)

County Planning Board Referral: 196.0-2025 Special Use Permits; 196.1-2025 Site Plans
(Class 1)

Owners: Patrick Romero & Kristin Romero

Representative: Patrick & Kristin Romero

Property: 6256 St Rt 64

Tax Map: 184.00-1-43.220

Zoned: C-1 (Light Commercial 1 Acre)

Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0011

County Planning Board Referral: Exempt
Owners: Shouting Hill LLC

Representative: Wade Sarkis, Jackson Guthrie
Property: 5770 Blake Acres Drive

Tax Map: 168.12-1-4.000

Zoned: R-3 (Residential 3 Acres)

Special Use Permit & Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0012

Other

County Planning Board Referral: Exempt

Owners: SBA Towers II LLC

Representative: Verizon Wireless Communications (co-location)
Property: 5701 South Hill Rd

Tax Map: 176.00-1-6.200

Zoned: PD (Planned Development)

Motion to Adjourn
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Present

Absent
Excused

Guests

Call to Order

Wednesday, November 19, 2025

David Bowen
Daniel Crowley
Jason Inda

Bruce Mackie
Frederick MclIntyre
Sam Seymour
Michael McCabe

Cody Koch
Paul Miller

In-person: Kristin & Patrick Romero, Mark Schlegel, Steve Fantuzzo
Zoom: Kevin Dooley, Wade Sarkis, Jackson Guthrie, Sean Mullen

The meeting of the Town of South Bristol Planning Board has been called to order at 6:30 pm. All Board
members were present except for Paul Miller and Cody Koch.

Reading of Vision Statement
Bruce Mackie read the Comprehensive Plan Vision Statement.

Meeting Etiquette
Chairman Bowen reviewed meeting etiquette.

Meeting Minutes
David Bowen made a motion to approve June 18, 2025, meeting minutes as amended on page 6, word

spelling on pages 14, 26, and 27. Daniel Crowley seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously
adopted by all Board members present.

Old Business

Public Hearing
Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0007

County Planning Board Referral: Exempt
Owners: Mark Conners

Representative: Kevin Dooley

Property: 6555 Longs Point Drive

Tax Map: 185.17-2-15.000

Zoned: R-3 (Residential 3 Acre)

Chairman Bowen: Can you read the public hearing notice, Diane.

Diane Graham: Yes.

Legal Notice of Public Hearing
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Please take notice that the Town of South Bristol Planning Board will hold a public hearing on the
following application:

2025-0007 for property owned by Mark Conners located at 6555 Longs Point Drive, tax map 185.17-2-
15.000. The applicant/property owner is looking for site plan approval to install two permanent docks:

690 square foot dock and boat station with two slips to the north and a 611 square foot dock to the south.

Said hearing will take place on the 19th day of November 2025 beginning at 6:30 pm at the South Bristol
Town Hall, 6500 West Gannett Hill Road, Naples, NY 14512.

Application is located on the town website under important documents and notices / board meeting
documents.

All interested parties may provide written comments, appear in person or by representatives.

Chairman Bowen: Thank you. We have Kevin Dooley, is that right?

Kevin Dooley: Yes, sir.

Chairman Bowen: Can you redescribe the project for us please.

Kevin Dooley: Yes. No problem. We are going to build a double boat station to the north with a gable end
roof. Will not be higher than fifteen above the mean high-water mark. We are doing a single dock about
sixty feet to the south with no boat station.

Chairman Bowen: I neglected to say I am opening the public hearing. We will consider your comments to
have fallen within the public hearing. Any changes since the initial meeting last month? I was not here.
Anything?

Diane Graham: Kevin.

Kevin Dooley: No changes. No sir. Other than we added the elevation you requested and then did the tax
map parcel so you could read the entire thing.

Diane Graham: The results of

Kevin Dooley: Of the comments from the board last time.
Diane Graham: The archeological.

Kevin Dooley: That was all set.

Diane Graham: That was after the meeting.

Kevin Dooley: Oh, I am sorry. Yep.
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Chairman Bowen: We did receive NYS Parks and Recreation Historic Preservation archeological site
determination letter dated October 16, 2025, with no impact. Do both the proposed docks meet the Town
of South Bristol dockings and moorings law?
Kevin Dooley: You asking me?
Chairman Bowen: Yes.
Kevin Dooley: Oh, one hundred percent sir.
Chairman Bowen: Okay. Just so you know the code enforcement officer indicated the same. Both docks
are well within the square footage permitted. They are well within the setbacks and water depth does not
appear to be a problem. Did we receive any written comments?

Diane Graham: No.

Chairman Bowen: Any comments from anybody on Zoom other than Mr. Dooley? Any comments or
questions from board members? In that case I will declare the public hearing closed.

This application is exempt from County Planning Board referral recommendation and comments. Being
docks there is no septic system to review or approval required. Same with there is no storm water or
erosion control measures or recommendations that are required. There is no steep slopes permit
application required. We did receive October 2, 2025, NYS DEC Threatened and Endangered Species
Part 182 Jurisdictional Determination letter indicating no impact. There are no agricultural active farms
within 500 feet. There is no floodplain determination or Floodplain Development Permit is required.

With regard to SEQR I will make a motion declaring SEQR for this project to be a Type II action under
paragraph 617.5 (c)(9) “which is construction of an accessory non-residential structure or facility of less
than less than 4,000 square feet of floor area.” Both docks fall well within that. Frederick McIntyre
seconded the motion.

All in favor.

Ayes 6; J. Inda, M. McCabe, F. Mclntyre, S. Seymour, D. Crowley, B. Mackie
Nays 0

Motion carried.
David Bowen: I will make the following findings:
1. The proposed project is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the Town of South Bristol.

2. The proposed project is consistent with the zoning district in which the project is located, which is lake
residential.

3. The proposed project will not have an adverse impact on the physical or environmental conditions of
the district.
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4. The proposed project will not adversely affect the character of the neighborhood.
5. The proposed project complies with the Docking and Mooring Law.
I will make a motion to approve findings 1-5.

I will note I was not here at the last meeting, and I also previously recused myself because these people
are my neighbors and friends of mine, so I am stepping back.

Daniel Crowley seconded the motion.
All in favor.

Ayes 6; J. Inda, M. McCabe, F. Mclntyre, S. Seymour, D. Crowley, B. Mackie
Nays 0

Motion carried.

David Bowen: I will request a motion to approve the preliminary and final site plan approval of this
amended application.

Jason Inda moved to approve, and Sam Seymour seconded the motion.
Roll Call Vote

Daniel Crowley — Aye

Jason Inda — Aye

Michael McCabe — Aye

Frederick Mclntyre — Aye

Sam Seymour — Aye

Bruce Mackie, Alt 1 — Aye

Motion carried.

Chairman Bowen: Thank you, Mr. Dooley. I will give you the usual.

Per town code you will need to obtain a building permit and start your project within six months of board
approval.

If the project has not started within six months of approval, you must submit a written request for a one-
time six-month extension to the board assistant to attend the next available board meeting to receive
approval for an extension.

If a year has passed since the date of approval, you will need to start the board application process over.

Kevin Dooley: Yes, sir. I appreciate all of you.

Chairman Bowen: Good luck.
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Kevin Dooley: Thank you, Diane.
Dinae Graham: You are welcome. Kevin.
Kevin Dooley: Have a good night.

New Business
Amendment to Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0001 Granted on May 21, 2025
County Planning Board Referral: Exempt
Owners: William P. Vitek & Laurel S. Raines
Representative: Mark Schlegel
Property: 6957 Granger Point Drive
Tax Map: 191.17-1-7.000
Zoned: LR (Lake Residential)

Chairman Bowen: Do we have an owner representative here?

Mark Schlegel: Yes, sir. Mark Schlegel here. I am the contractor doing some work for those folks. I
suppose this is in front of you because myself, and them were not aware that we needed to talk to you
about extending the fence that [ am pretty sure at one time did exist on that property. They are looking to
construct it. That is what we are doing tonight.

Chairman Bowen: Okay. We have the site plan depicting where the fence is going. Is that all inside the
property line?

Mark Schlegel: Yes, sir.

Chairman Bowen: It shows as abutting the line.

Mark Schlegel: Yes.

Chairman Bowen: Is there any idea about moving it in a little bit from the property line?

Mark Schlegel: I will certainly keep it a few inches in, yes. The surveyor has been there repeatedly, and it
is well marked.

Chairman Bowen: It looks like there are some pins on various sides of the property line down there. In
this area it all looks like it is within the pins, but the plan did not show any distance between the proposed
fence and the line.

Mark Schlegel: I will certainly keep it within the property line.

Chairman Bowen: Bad enough you have to come before us, but you have go before another court or
something and not be fun.

Mark Schlegel: I try to play by the rules.

Diane Graham: Do you want to read exactly what it is?
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Chairman Bowen: Site plan was revised October 27, 2025, and describes adding a fence five-foot four
inches tall, 35 feet long wood board fence to be added within the northwest property line. Is that accurate?

Mark Schlegel: Yes, sir.

Chairman Bowen: Alright. Any questions from the board?

Daniel Crowley: It is an extension.

Mark Schlegel: It is. There is currently a fence coming roughly from the high-water line along the lake
headed towards, if you have got a map, the carriage house, we call it, accessory building. It stops kind of
unexplained. I do not know why somebody chose that place to stop it. The owners would like it to
continue to the stone column at the corner of the driveway.

Daniel Crowley: Got it. Is it consistent in height with the rest of the fence?

Mark Schlegel: It is going to be taller than the rest of the fence.

Daniel Crowley: Visually the same.

Mark Schlegel: The existing fence is a little over four-foot. They are asking for five-foot four. She is the
designer, that is what she would like. There will be a step up. The fence runs along the side of the
building. There are no views to obstruct.

Daniel Crowley: I am thinking of the neighbors’ view that it does not look completely different.

Mark Schlegel: No.

Frederick Mclntyre: Is the existing fence also a board fence?

Mark Schlegel: It is.

Frederick Mclntyre: So, it is similar in that nature.

Mark Schlegel: It will. The construction will match other than it is stepping up running along the building.
Daniel Crowley: Thank you. That is really what I was asking.

Mark Schlegel: I am sorry.

Daniel Crowley: That’s okay. You just stated better.

Chairman Bowen: Anybody else? Alright at this time I will request a motion to approve applicants
request to amend the site plan approved on May 21, 2025, to add the proposed fence.

Diane Graham: It has to be among the four: Jason Inda, Frederick McIntyre, Sam Seymour and Daniel
Crowley.
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Sam Seymour made a motion to approve, and Frederick McIntyre seconded the motion.

Jason Inda — Aye
Frederick McIntyre — Aye
Sam Seymour — Aye
Daniel Crowley — Aye

Motion carried.
Chairman Bowen: You are all set.
Mark Schlegel: Thank you everybody. Thank you again for your help, Diane.

Special Use Permit & Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0008 (Lot with Two Principal Uses)
County Planning Board Referral: 196.0-2025 Special Use Permits; 196.1-2025 Site Plans (Class 1)
Owners: Patrick Romero & Kristin Romero
Representative: Patrick & Kristin Romero
Property: 6256 St Rt 64
Tax Map: 184.00-1-43.220
Zoned: C-1 (Light Commercial 1 Acre)

Special Use Permit & Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0009 (Fabrication/Assembly of Products Use)
County Planning Board Referral: 196.0-2025 Special Use Permits; 196.1-2025 Site Plans (Class 1)
Owners: Patrick Romero & Kristin Romero
Representative: Patrick & Kristin Romero
Property: 6256 St Rt 64
Tax Map: 184.00-1-43.220
Zoned: C-1 (Light Commercial 1 Acre)

Special Use Permit & Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0010 (Single-Family Dwelling Use)
County Planning Board Referral: 196.0-2025 Special Use Permits; 196.1-2025 Site Plans (Class 1)
Owners: Patrick Romero & Kristin Romero
Representative: Patrick & Kristin Romero
Property: 6256 St Rt 64
Tax Map: 184.00-1-43.220
Zoned: C-1 (Light Commercial 1 Acre)

Chairman Bowen: Who do we have?

Patrick Romero: Patrick Romero

Kristin Romero: Kristin Romero.

Chairman Bowen: Good evening. Do you want to briefly describe your project for the board.

Patrick Romero: The special use permits one on them is for glass shop that we have that is pre-existing for
close to three years. We have been advised that we need to have a special use permit for the fabrication of
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that one. The second permit is for bringing in utilities in. I will let you talk. You have been through all
this.

Kristin Romero: I believe the second one is to authorize a residential usage within the commercial portion
of the property. We are on the edge of the residential/commercial. We have an existing barn that we
would like to use as a personal residence when we are not in our primary residence also in South Bristol
on 64 and Co Rd 33. I think after that if and when that gets approved actually turning that dwelling into a
residence.

Chairman Bowen: Just for clarification as I understand it there are two buildings on the property, correct?
Kristin Romero: Correct.

Chairman Bowen: One is the existing glass manufacturing business.

Kristin Romero: Correct. That is the one closest to the street.

Chairman Bowen: Behind that there is a barn and that you are proposing to turn into a single residential
use.

Kristin Romero: One bedroom, one bath for us.

Chairman Bowen: Both of those structures lie within the C-1 district although if you go further back for
whatever reason your lot turns into a residential one district, R-1.

Kristin Romero: It was R-3 and now it is R-1. Do not know when that happened up the hill.

Chairman Bowen: Right. Somebody else changed some property lines or whatever.

Kristin Romero: We will go with it.

Chairman Bowen: There is a third special use permit application which technically is supposed to come
first because you have two principal uses, one being the glass fabrication business the other is single
family residence. You can only have one principal use on a lot.

Kristin Romero: That is my understanding, yes.

Chairman Bowen: Otherwise, you need a special use permit. Before we get to the other two, you have to
get the first one.

Kristin Romero: Want to do the easy one first? Haha.

Chairman Bowen: Might as well. For the record under our zoning code 170-14 C. says no more than one
principal use permitted on any lot except by special use permit per 170-22. In your case 170-22 the
applicant has to show various things. Fortunately, in this case you do not need any variances for use or

area or dimensions or anything.

Kristin Romero: None that [ am aware of.
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Chairman Bowen: According to the code enforcement officer everything meets the current zoning
requirement other than the fact you need special use permits. Why don’t we cover the first permit
allowing two uses. Under 170-22 there are several questions that you have to respond to. Are you aware
of those or know what they are?

Kristin Romero: Not at this point, but [ am sure you will let me know.

Chairman Bowen: One whether these uses are consistent with the comprehensive plan.

Kristin Romero: To my understanding they are.

Chairman Bowen: Is it in harmony with the regulations of the C-1 district. The purpose and intent of the
C-1 district is to serve commercial needs of residents in the general public. Does your business serve the
needs of the public?

Kristin Romero: Yes, sir it does.

Chairman Bowen: Just for the record can you tell us what the business is?

Kristin Romero: We are a glass manufacturing and fabricating service company. As far as manufacturing
is concerned there is no large heavy equipment or anything of that nature. We do not manufacture the
glass itself. We generally will be out in other people’s homes. Measuring shower doors, closets,
organizing type things, bath hardware, mirrors in bathrooms that type of thing. Our product comes from a
vendor, and we put the parts and pieces together and install them into someone else’s property.

Patrick Romero: Our building of shower doors is all pretty well done on the premises.

Kristin Romero: On someone else’s property.

Patrick Romero: Yes. This is more of a storage area than it is actual building fabrication of the product. It
is a custom product that has to be put together at the home. We design custom frameless shower doors by
our glass from a vendor. It comes to our vendor, it goes into our warehouse, goes onto our truck, we go

out to the job and build it to the plan.

Kristin Romero: As far as the fabrication and manufacturing it is not like we are manufacturing a product.
It already comes to us manufactured. We have to put the parts together.

Chairman Bowen: There is not a lot of loud glass cutting in the building?
Kristin Romero: No.

Patrick Romero: No. We are breaking bottles.

Kristin Romero: No.

Chairman Bowen: Number three is no adverse affect on the character of the area.
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Kristin Romero: I would like to think we have improved it.
Chairman Bowen: It has been there four years correct?
Kristin Romero: Close to it.
Chairman Bowen: Anybody complained? Any of your neighbors come in and complain about it?
Patrick Romero: If you see what is on either side of me, I think you would appreciate what we did.
Kristin Romero: Owen’s lawn mower makes more noise than we do.
Chairman Bowen: I am not aware of any complaints on record with the town.
Kristin Romero: None that [ am aware.
Patrick Romero: Compliments. I think it really enhanced.

Chairman Bowen: No detrimental or adverse impact on physical or environmental conditions in the
neighborhood.

Kristin Romero: None that [ am aware of.

Chairman Bowen: It has to comply with SEQR which is a different thing, and we have a SEQR form that
has been filled out. I do not see any reason why these wouldn’t be Type II uses. There would not be any
need for extensive environmental impact analysis.

Kristin Romero: Thank you.

Chairman Bowen: That being said anybody have any questions with respect to the two uses. The
fabrication facility or the residential facility?

Daniel Crowley: Any chemicals stored on site?

Kristin Romero: No.

Patrick Romero: Alcohol.

Kristin Romero: Don’t tell them that. Rubbing alcohol.

Chairman Bowen: There is mention in the watershed inspector report from some years ago indicating that
there is a utility sink in the building that drains through the wall and out the building and drains onto the
ground.

Kristin Romero: Yes. That is no longer in use and will be removed.

Chairman Bowen: Is that going to be refurbished or repurposed or used elsewhere in the building?

Page 10 of 24



Town of South Bristol Planning Board Meeting Minutes 11.19.2025 Approved
Kristin Romero: No.
Chairman Bowen: There is currently one bathroom in that building?
Kristin Romero: That is correct.
Chairman Bowen: Is that going to stay as is?
Kristin Romero: That is going to stay as is.
Chairman Bowen: With regard to the residential use how many bedrooms do you plan to have?
Kristin Romero: One.
Chairman Bowen: What plumbing is anticipated in that structure?

Patrick Romero: There will be all new plumbing. There is nothing in that barn at this time. We would be
bringing in water, sewer, and electricity.

Chairman Bowen: You plan on a bathroom and a kitchen?

Patrick Romero: A bathroom and a kitchen, yes.

Chairman Bowen: We got your original site plan we got an updated version of it from Bill Grove who I
guess is not here tonight. The original one had the existing system as one leach line that is under the
driveway currently and that is being abandoned, correct?

Kristin Romero: Yes.

Chairman Bowen: The sewer line that runs from the building to that leach line is going to be modified and
turned slightly to the south.

Patrick Romero: Yes. We are going to avoid that driveway altogether and bring in whatever lines we have
to. Bring it in to the new leach line with a new distribution box.

Chairman Bowen: The original plan that Mr. Grove came up with there were two leach lines and the
amended one that he provided since then has three. Do you know why that change was made?

Patrick Romero: They added an extra line.
Daniel Romero: Is that in the blue?

Patrick Romero: The blue is the proposed 50% future expansion area which I think is overkill for three
leach lines for what we have there right now. They want future area which is fine. It is a matter of moving
out speed bumps and everything and making that area larger in case there ever has to be an expansion to
the septic tank itself. Based on what I was under the impression that even the existing leach line with the
one leach line right now is enough for what we want to do. We are expanding this even further and going
into three leach lines, relocating, taking out a driveway area. That driveway was supposed to be in the
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middle of the property somehow it got shifted to the end of the property which traveled over that
distribution box. This was all previous to me purchasing that building. I have no problem as far as
bringing in the new leach lines. It does look like Bill added an extra leach line on there. Originally there
was only two to begin with. We are adding another one it has the area that they want to propose future
usage which is more than adequate enough to house the one bathroom that will be in the upfront shop and
what we are putting into that shop over there.

Chairman Bowen: I think it is in there in the event that you build a larger living space at some point in the
future or something like that.

Daniel Crowley: It is cheaper to do it now.
Kristin Romero: Understand. We do not have a problem doing it.

Patrick Romero: I do not mind overkill. It is more than adequate situation for what we need to do. |
always build better than just build enough to make it suffice.

Daniel Crowley: Smart.

Kristin Romero: Smarter not harder. That is a good motto.

Chairman Bowen: We did just so you know or maybe you already know this we got an email today from
Tyler Ohle, Watershed Inspector. Up until today all that I knew was that he had seen a sketch of what Bill
had proposed so I didn’t even know if he had ever even sent his original plan to Tyler or not but
apparently, he did but he has also now seen the new one showing the three green lines and the two
potential future ones. The email indicates that he did see the new plans. He doesn’t have them in paper
form yet, but essentially, he said he is planning to approve it. Assuming that we get that by December 1%
then we can have you on next month’s calendar. If we don’t have it then we may have to put you off to
January. I know that is out of your control.

Patrick Romero: Who has to get that to you?

Chairman Bowen: Tyler Ohle has to get that to I am sure he will send it to Diane.

Kristin Romero: By December 152

Chairman Bowen: Yes.

Diane Graham: It helps me to process.

Kristin Romero: I just want to understand.

Chairman Bowen: Anybody have any other questions, concerns? Just for the record the email from Tyler
Ohle came today November 19, 2025, with a preliminary septic design approval, but it is not the final. If

there are no other questions, do you have any questions of us?

Patrick Romero: If it is not stamped and approved at this particular time on the said proposed? The
engineer stamp does not mean anything.
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Diane Graham: His should be stamped and signed.
Daniel Crowley: It is by Bill Grove.
Diane Graham: Tyler will put his approval on that plan.
Patrick Romero: Okay. It is a dual signature then.
Diane Graham: Not a stamp but his approval signature with a letter.
Chairman Bowen: You are on a ditch out front unless you can tell me there is some other waterway that
goes through there. The site report that we get shows that there is a waterway and that is why the SEQR
report shows that there is a waterway there. That ditch out front ends up in Canandaigua Lake. The
watershed inspector has to look at anything that ends up in the lake on terms of septic systems. For our
code enforcement officer to issue you a building permit or us to give you site plan approval the watershed
inspector has to approve it.
Patrick Romero: Perfect.
Chairman Bowen: With that in mind we will tentatively schedule the application for final review and
public hearing on December 17, 2025, pending receipt of Tyler Ohle, final septic design approval letter by
December 1, 2025. If we do not get it by then, the application has to go over to January.
Kristin Romero: Understood.
Chairman Bowen: I am not sure of the date of that meeting yet. Usually the third Wednesday.
Diane Graham: Did I put it on there?
Kristin Romero: He is talking about January.
Diane Graham: Oh yes January.
Kristin Romero: If I do not jump on Tyler and get what I need.
Patrick Romero: As long as that is signed, we move to the next step.
Chairman Bowen: Next meeting is the public hearing, so the first matter was had tonight was the public
hearing on that application. It gives the public an opportunity to chime in or send in comments or appear
by Zoom if they choose. If any of your neighbors want to object to any of this, they can come in or
somebody else. Ordinarily if we do not hear from anybody and nobody objects then who are we to say no
unless there is something.
Kristin Romero: Egregious.

Diane Graham: It goes in the newspaper, and it also goes to your neighbors.

Kristin Romero: Got it.
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Patrick Romero: Does the neighbor on this get mail?
Kristin Romero: We do not know.
Chairman Bowen: Okay. We are all set. Hopefully see you next month.
Kristin Romero: Thank you for your time.
Diane Graham: Thank you.
Kristin Romero: Thanks Diane.
Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0011

County Planning Board Referral: Exempt

Owners: Shouting Hill LLC

Representative: Wade Sarkis, Jackson Guthrie

Property: 5770 Blake Acres Drive

Tax Map: 168.12-1-4.000
Zoned: R-3 (Residential 3 Acres)

Chairman Bowen: Who is here on that matter?

Jackson Guthrie: Jackson Guthrie

Sean Mullen: Sean Mullen. I work with Jackson.

Diane Graham: Just for the record the owner Wade Sarkis is on Zoom.

Wade Sarkis: Hello Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Bowen: Good evening, Mr. Sarkis. Jackson, can you describe your project of us please.

Jackson Guthrie: Yes, sir. We are looking to install a 20.24 DC kw solar system on Mr. Sarkis pre-
existing barn north of his house.

Chairman Bowen: Any board members have any questions or comments?

Frederick Mclntyre: I was looking at the pitch of that roof. When you put all of that on there do you have
to worry about the change of seasons as to how efficient that is going to be?

Jackson Guthrie: Yes. It does change between seasons based on shading between the clouds we all know
how grey it gets over the winter. It does fluctuate. You get the highest production in the summer and

lowest in the winter.

Frederick MclIntyre: How much difference do you think you are going to have between winter and
summer?
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Jackson Guthrie: That is a good question. I would imagine it is about a 50% reduction. You are getting
half the daylight hours during the winter than you are during the summer. Not just because the sun sets

quicker and the shading of the trees is going to block more of that direct sunlight.

Frederick MclIntyre: Was there any thought about putting them on poles so that you could change the
angulation?

Jackson Guthrie: I do not believe so. I think for a rooftop installation it has to be within a certain vertical
distance and then Mr. Sarkis, I know you preferred the rooftop because there is no convenient place for a
ground mount.

Wade Sarkis: That is correct.

Chairman Bowen: Any tree removal anticipated for any of this?

Jackson Guthrie: There is no tree removal for this installation.

Chairman Bowen: I did not see anything on the plan, so I assumed there wasn’t.

Diane Graham: Was there anything external being added to the building other than the panels?

Jackson Guthrie: Yes. The AC combiner panel equipment will be installed on the northeast wall of the
building.

Daniel Crowley: Any onsite battery storage?

Jackson Guthrie: Not for this project.

Chairman Bowen: Anybody else?

Bruce Mackie: I have a couple clarifications perhaps. Under the short environmental assessment form for
clarification under items number 10 and 11 current has no check for both of those questions. I believe the
more appropriate answer would be not applicable because the no is asking for some additional
information and both of those questions are not applicable. They have to do with water supply and
existing wastewater utilities.

Chairman Bowen: Unfortunately, the form does not have an NA box.

Bruce Mackie: I did not know if you can add it or not. I just bring it up for the board’s attention.
Chairman Bowen: I will make a note of that and when I come in to sign this assuming this is approved,
we will be all set. I would note for the record typically we require an archeological site determination
letter from NY'S Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation but seeing how the pole barn was built back

in 2021 I believe. Is that correct?

Diane Graham: Yes.
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Chairman Bowen: We already have on record a no impact letter or no concerns letter dated January 13,
2021, so in my view that was sufficient for this particular project. With regard to the SEQR short form I
did not see any apparent discrepancies other than what Bruce just brought up. Not looking for any
changes there. I did not see any reason for site plan changes or alterations. I will note the code
enforcement officer indicated that the project meets town zoning code use and area and dimensional
requirements. There was a according to state EAF mapper report there are no threatened or endangered
species of animals nearby. We do not need an negative impact letter from the DEC on this project. With
that if nobody has any other further questions or if the applicant does not have any further questions or
comments then I will mark this application as complete and schedule final review and public hearing on
December 17,

Special Use Permit & Site Plan Approval Application 2025-0012
County Planning Board Referral: Exempt
Owners: SBA Towers II LLC
Representative: Verizon Wireless Communications (co-location)
Property: 5701 South Hill Rd
Tax Map: 176.00-1-6.200
Zoned: PD (Planned Development)

Chairman Bowen: Who do we have here?
Steve Fantuzzo: Good evening. Steve Fantuzzo, Nixon Peabody attorneys for Verizon.

Chairman Bowen: Good evening. Thanks for coming down. Could you describe the project for the Board
please.

Steve Fantuzzo: This is a proposed co-location on an existing tower 5701 South Hill Road which is in the
back of Bristol Mountain Ski Resort there. The plan is a minimal change to the site. There is proposed to
be additional Verizon antennas added to the tower. Antenna centerline of 160 feet. There would be a
proposed 16 by 22-foot leased area on the ground in that same compound vicinity where the equipment
cabinet and battery cabinet and other equipment essentially would be stored to support the antennas. The
application includes the owner of the tower which the chair mentioned as SBA Communications. They
have signed an agreement permitting Verizon to co-locate on the tower subject the Board’s review and
approval of the site plan and special use permit.

Chairman Bowen: You are adding antennas 160 feet up?

Steve Fantuzzo: Yes.

Chairman Bowen: The tower is?

Steve Fantuzzo: The tower is 195 plus the lightening rod.

Chairman Bowen: There was variance granted I guess for this tower to go to 200 feet as per letter from
the code enforcement officer from October 25, 1999. It does not appear that any variances are required.

Our code for towers is 195 feet. This exceeds that but apparently, they did get a variance way back when.

Diane Graham: In 1978.
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Chairman Bowen: When there was something else happening in 1999 a letter was issued stating various
facts which SBA could rely on for whatever it was, they were applying for back then. The proposed
compound you said is 16 by 22 feet.

Steve Fantuzzo: Yes. 16 by 22. It should have a six-foot fence surrounding the equipment which is topped
off with about a foot of barbed wire just for protection. It houses the equipment. They do a small concrete
slab. The rest is gravel.

Chairman Bowen: In speaking with code enforcement today, he indicated in his view the western edge of
this lot that is the schematic overall site plan the western lot was the front so that the side setbacks were
ten feet and that compound was approximately 24 plus or minus feet from the nearest property line. The
setback appears to be in compliance so you would not need a variance for that. I guess the issue I have is
apparently there is a history of this tower falling over because somebody at Bristol Mountain operated a
bulldozer or something and hit one of the guidewires and it went down. It was put back up again. The site
plan that we have before us is a parallelogram extending northwest from the compound saying it is the
guyed wire property. Assuming there is more than one guy wire on this tower. Do you happen to know
where the other two guy wires are?

Steve Fantuzzo: On the first [ know we submitted a follow-up one. The first site plan CC-200 shows a
few different guy wires at different heights. There is one at 77 feet, 147 and 177.

Chairman Bowen: Yes. I am guessing where they are. When we are looking from up above where do
these guy wires end up because the property lines here don’t appear to suggest unless.

Daniel Crowley: They are outside the property line you think.

Chairman Bowen: I am not sure. We have one parallelogram which calls it guy wire property and that
rectangle I guess it extends beyond the parcel boundary and on the south and east side we have
approximate parcel bounds that would appear to extend off maybe in an equal triangular shape so perhaps
the guy wires are along those parcel bounds. I have no idea. There is a structure just outside the parcel
boundaries which I was told by code enforcement that was likely a Bristol Mountain structure and
vehicles there.

Steve Fantuzzo: Yes. I am not sure if they show at least that I am seeing on the site plan where they
actually connect on the ground. That is something we can get an answer to you. I need to talk to the
engineer and folks to see exactly where those are.

Chairman Bowen: Can we get them put on the plan.

Steve Fantuzzo: Yes.

Sam Seymour: What is the approximate weight of the equipment being added? Ballpark idea?

Steve Fantuzzo: No idea honestly. I can follow up too on that.

Sam Seymour: This tower seems to be pretty old, and the pictures don’t look like it is that substantial, you
know.
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Steve Fantuzzo: Sure. What [ would point out to you is the structural analysis in Exhibit F which basically
is going to provide in terms of overall weight, if it is buried in there I am not as familiar. I can certainly
give you a follow-up answer to that.

Sam Seymour: You are talking about the vertical triangular shaped antennas we see on other towers.

Steve Fantuzzo: Yes. It is set out on one of the pages. There are a lot of pages here. They are going to be
the vertical ones that you are describing.

Sam Seymour: The cables probably weigh more than the antennas.

Steve Fantuzzo: They are sort of shaped in that CC-200 page at 160 you can see as you described. I think
there should be a further page that shows a little more detail.

Daniel Crowley: Guy wires extend 200 feet in each direction.

Chairman Bowen: There are no dimension on this site plan so it is really difficult to know how far out
they go.

Diane Graham: Is there a way to help prevent it happening again from being knocked over.
Daniel Crowley: That may be a question for the bulldozer operator.
Sam Seymour: Haha.

Chairman Bowen: I am sure that was resolved some years ago with their lawyers and insurance company,
but who knows.

Steve Fantuzzo: We can follow up on that. I do think there is any proposed change to them. I have not
been aware of that history.

Chairman Bowen: I am not looking to have the wires changed. | am wondering where they are.
Steve Fantuzzo: Understood.

Chairman Bowen: In the event Bristol Mountain wants to come in here at the public hearing since it
would seem the base of those wires is probably on their property. Technically, are you representing
Verizon or SBA?

Steve Fantuzzo: Verizon.

Chairman Bowen: That is the other situation I realize that you guys are leasing the tower space from SBA
and SBA is actually the owner of this thing, which I will mention that today I found out from the code
enforcement officer there is no certificate of compliance for the electrical that is already there. SBA never
followed up with an inspection in providing that certificate. That may be something you might want to
mention to SBA that might be coming. Not only for the existing structure and cabinets that are there but
the ones you are going to be installing.
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Steve Fantuzzo: Understood.
Chairman Bowen: I appreciate the fact also that in response to most of the questions under the special use
permit application that you are a lessee that you cannot answer a lot of the questions for SBA. They really
apply to them as opposed to you. However, it is Verizon that is seeking the special use permit. None of
the answers stuck out to me as being problematic. I do know if the rest of the board had any issues with
any of the responses. It was a voluminous piece. I will look through it some more in advance of the public
hearing. If there is anything I see in the meantime I will shoot you an email or something.
Steve Fantuzzo: Okay. Sure.
Daniel Crowley: Exhibit A-1 has a sketch of the site, David. I do not know which absolute page number it
is on but it gives the orientation of the guy wires that extend 200 feet from the tower. I think you are
saying there is no physical measurements on the site plan per se or on the overhead.

Chairman Bowen: Which one is it?

Daniel Crowley: It says page number ten in the bottom right-hand corner. It is called a compound
drawing. I do not know what page of the PDF it is on.

Chairman Bowen: That is not the Verizon construction drawings, is it?
Daniel Crowley: This is the 10.22.2025 application stored in the site.
Diane Graham: The site plan updated in 11.05.2025.

Daniel Crowley: It is the application. The 10.22.2025 is the name of the PDF and it appears to be on page
94. It gives you a compass orientation.

Chairman Bowen: Okay.
Diane Graham: Is that possibly the structural analysis?

Chairman Bowen: It is a sketch of the site it is not super imposed over the site plan or the boundaries of
the property it sits on.

Daniel Crowley: Right. You do not know if they extend beyond the edge?

Steve Fantuzzo: Did you say that was in the structural tab F? Is that where you are looking?

Daniel Crowley: I do not know to be honest with you. I am in the electronic version of the document.
Chairman Bowen: It is right after your lease agreement, I think.

Daniel Crowley: It is called Exhibit A site description.

Chairman Bowen: I think it is Exhibit G.
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Daniel Crowley: Again, as David said it is not. Yes, Exhibit G. Exhibit G. starts on page 84.
Chairman Bowen: It is right after the lease.
Steve Fantuzzo: Got it. Okay. So, the exhibit to the lease.

Daniel Crowley: I think David’s point would be to say if you could supper impose the site on that drawing
that would answer that question.

Steve Fantuzzo: Okay.

Chairman Bowen: Assuming this is to scale. I assume these guys’ wires are not too scale either because
they don’t extend beyond the cabinet structure that is already there.

Sam Seymour: There is in engineers report another sketch of those.
Chairman Bowen: I am assuming you do not have a survey of this lot?

Steve Fantuzzo: I do not think there is a separate survey if they did. The CC-100 shows the bounds of the
lot.

Chairman Bowen: Approximate bounds.

Steve Fantuzzo: Yes. They probably pulled the tax parcel from OnCor or somewhere else and dropped
that in there. I do not think they got an official survey of it since it is no real change essentially within the
same footprint.

Chairman Bowen: Well, if we can get the guy wires on the there.

Steve Fantuzzo: Yes. I will request that from the Costich folks.

Chairman Bowen: Either on CC-100 or if you can provide us with something more detailed.

Steve Fantuzzo: Okay.

Chairman Bowen: I am not sure it makes any sense to put it on the other drawing.

Steve Fantuzzo: Okay.

Sam Seymour: The anchor points are the key.

Chairman Bowen: The other sheet does not appear to be to scale, and it doesn’t even have the lot on it so
it is kind of useless for that.

Steve Fantuzzo: I do not know if there is record of when it was initially approved if that was considered or

approved as part of that. I know you found the variance record. I do not know if that was on a site plan
that was previously approved.
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Daniel Crowley: I can see the wire David in the satellite in OnCor. They are on the property. It is not an
official drawing but when you look on OnCor they actually follow the property lines.

Steve Fantuzzo: Okay.

Daniel Crowley: It is interesting I am trying to see the site plan.

Chairman Bowen: How many antennas?

Steve Fantuzzo: Nine total. There are three sectors with three each.

Chairman Bowen: Are they dispersed around equally weight the same?

Steve Fantuzzo: They should be. I think they make sort of a triangular to hit in all directions.
Chairman Bowen: By the way what is the purpose for these antennas? What are we trying to achieve?
Steve Fantuzzo: Sure. Yeah. It is increased coverage in the area.

Chairman Bowen: Any specific area in particular?

Jason Inda: I have one maybe two bars.

Daniel Crowley: No. I would guarantee what it is on any given Saturday when Bristol Mountain is full
you cannot get a signal.

Steve Fantuzzo: Yes. It is certainly a combination of capacity and coverage. Usually, they are trying to hit
a gap if there is a gap which seems to be the case, but also, if it is completely busy.

Daniel Crowley: This tower will see Lock Stock. The tower on Stid Hill does not see Lock Stock. That is
why when you sit in Lock Stock and if you are a Verizon customer you can’t.

Chairman Bowen: Tell them Chesire is a problem too.

Steve Fantuzzo: Sure. Will pass that along. Thank you.

[Multiple people speaking]

Chairman Bowen: Can you print that.

Daniel Crowley: I can show it to you. So, there are anchor points that have a cement pad.

Sam Seymour: An abutment sort of thing.

Daniel Crowley: Yes. It is on OnCor. Here is the thing on OnCor I know the way the lines overlay are not
always 100% correct but it does appear that northern most landing point of the guy line is outside the

property line. At least if you think this property line is placed correctly, but I think these can be off ten
feet as it relates to actual placement, so you need a survey. It looks like it was designed to follow the
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property lines. I see the one that they unhooked based on where it is in relation to Bristol Mountain
buildings which are right around it.

Sam Seymour: Right behind the top of the lift.

Daniel Crowley: Yes. It is right there. I do not know if I can print it, David.

Chairman Bowen: Can you copy it and email it? Well, if we can get a better image.
Steve Fantuzzo: Okay.

Chairman Bowen: Maybe you guys can provide us the image from OnCor.

Steve Fantuzzo: Okay.

Chairman Bowen: Send it to Diane.

Sam Seymour: That drawing showing the guy wire property has a little bump. Is that lot line straight?
Chairman Bowen: I think what you gave us is the OnCor image.

Daniel Crowley: Yes, but it is blurry. Let me see.

Sam Seymour: There would be one here. One is over here. One is down in this corner.
Chairman Bowen: Dan, does it show this lot?

Daniel Crowley: I am going to slide over.

Steve Fantuzzo: Yes. I am sure they have one.

Daniel Crowley: There is one here, one here and one here. If you look, here is the curve the tower is here.
You can actually see the line, and it lands on that rectangle.

Chairman Bowen: That is within the boundary line.

Daniel Crowley: Correct. There is another one down here on this corner. There is another one here on this
corner. The one that does not show that it is not inside is to the north.

Sam Seymour: That is this line here.

Daniel Crowley: Correct. That is a line that extends this way. It looks like it is outside. That one is here. It
depends on the accuracy of the placement of that line.

Chairman Bowen: Looks like we are looking the same image you guys have on here.

Steve Fantuzzo: Okay. I can follow up with them.
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Chairman Bowen: If there is a way to get them marked on that sheet.

Steve Fantuzzo: We can see if there is a deed online and try to pull the legal description which maybe add
the measurements and get more squared away. I will follow up and see if we can get that image.

Daniel Crowley: Here is the landing pad for this one. See it shows it jutting up above. I would guess this
is one because this is Bristol Mountain stuff. That is probably the one they clipped right there.

Sam Seymour: The top of the lift is not far from them.

Chairman Bowen: Okay. Anybody have any other issues or requests on this thing? We can get the guy
wires on the site plan and the weight of the antennas. The weight of the antennas you asked for Sam.

Bruce Mackie: Mr. Chairman I believe one of the pages the weight of the antennas is listed.

Chairman Bowen: I remember the last tower they listed a weight for all the various components that were
going on.

Steve Fantuzzo: I can double check and confirm that.

Chairman Bowen: The new ones. Other than that, we will consider the application complete and schedule
the application for final review and public hearing on December 17. Okay Steven.

Steve Fantuzzo: Okay. Thank you. I will get this into you as soon as we can.
Daniel Crowley: I am sure Nixon has the resources.

Steve Fantuzoo: Sometimes we are the folks sending out the orders. We rely on engineers a lot of the time
on these. We will follow up with them tomorrow. Thank you.

Chairman Bowen: If you talk to SBA and Verizon about the certificate of compliance on the electrical.

Steve Fantuzzo: Okay. Yes. That will probably come from somebody on the Verizon team or site team
and probably be in the communications.

Diane Graham: It is the certificate of compliance for the tower being erected after it was knocked over. It
would be whomever they hired to do that.

Chairman Bowen: Wasn’t it also for the building that is already there with panels in it. I think that is what
it was. It is basically an open building permit.

Steve Fantuzzo: I am sure they are in touch because they have got the leasing documents in place so there
has to be a point of contact somewhere so we can communicate.

Diane Graham: I think Catherine Ware is the contact.

Steve Fantuzzo: Okay.

Page 23 of 24



Town of South Bristol Planning Board Meeting Minutes 11.19.2025 Approved
Chairman Bowen: The code enforcement officer would love to issue a certificate of compliance.
Steve Fantuzzo: Just open. Understood. Thank you.
Chairman Bowen: Thanks Steven. Any other business they want to bring to the board?

Being no further business, Sam Seymour moved to adjourn the meeting. Daniel Crowley seconded the
motion. The motion was unanimously adopted, and the meeting was adjourned at 7:44 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Oiane S Blar

Diane Scholtz Graham
Board Assistant
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